[} ) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING/ANNUAL PLANNING
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 6" DAY OF JULY, 2017

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District No. 38, Cook
County, Illinois, will hold a Special Meeting/Retreat on the 6™ day of July, 2017 at 9 a.m. in the Library
Technology Center.

AGENDA
Library Technology Center (Open Session — 9 a.m.)

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Present  Absent Present  Absent
Mindy Kelly Suzanne Nelson
Danielle Boros Melissa Ross
John Gottschall Scott Wallace

Donna Keller

II. PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment)
III. OPENING REMARKS/INTRODUCTIONS

IV.  DISCUSSION AND PRESENTATION OF BEST OF PRACTICES IN BOARD
GOVERNANCE

V. CONSENT AGENDA
A.  Approval of Minutes of the June 19, 2017 Regular Meeting and Closed Session
B.  Authorization to Destroy Closed Session Recording for February 2016

VI. OLD BUSINESS
A. Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendation to add 1.0FTE First Grade Teacher
Position for the 2017-2018 School Year

VII. NEW BUSINESS
A. Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendation to Hire Ms. Alison Hecimovich as
1.0FTE Student Services Teacher
B.  Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendation to Hire Ms. Samantha Valsamis as
1.0FTE School Psychologist

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

X. ADJOURNMENT

Dated the 3" day of July, 2017. Chl—h—

Chike Erokwu
Secretary, Board of Education
Kenilworth School District No. 38

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 19™ DAY OF JUNE 2017

The meeting was called to order by President Mindy Kelly at 5:36 p.m. Upon roll call, the following
board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Danielle Boros, Mrs. Suzanne
Nelson, Mr. John Gottschall, Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Melissa Ross. Mrs. Donna Keller was absent.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO

Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal

Mr. Besset Sabourin Director of Student Services;
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters.

Mr. Scott Wallace made a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters. The motion was seconded by Mr. John Gottschall.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

The Board entered closed session at 5:36 p.m.

The Board returned to open session at 7:43 p.m.

Upon roll call, the following board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Danielle
Boros, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mr. John Gottschall, Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Melissa Ross. Mrs. Donna
Keller was absent.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO

Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal
Mr. Besset Sabourin Director of Student Services;

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/19/17 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 7



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary
Community: Mrs. Enza Fox (videographer)

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mrs. Mindy Kelly invited public comment. There was none.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS

Dr. LeRoy introduced Dr. Kurt Schneider, Superintendent of NSSED, who gave a presentation on the
future of students in special education and how that relates to the District.

FOIA Report — There were no Freedom of Information Act requests since the last meeting.

Superintendent’s Report — Dr. LeRoy discussed the upcoming annual strategic board planning meeting.
Board members will be asked to complete a governance survey in advance of the meeting.

Mrs. Kelly said that Board sub-committees should come up with three items that they would like to work
in this upcoming year in advance of the meeting. This information would tie into the strategic plan. Dr.
LeRoy said she would like to meet with each sub-committee in the coming week to discuss sub-
committee priorities.

Dr. LeRoy discussed the District’s wellness committee. Faculty would be involved in the leadership of
the wellness committee, which will focus on mental and physical wellbeing.

CSBO’s Report — Dr. LeRoy reviewed the monthly financial reports. With the fiscal year set to end in
June, Dr. LeRoy estimated that the District will have spent roughly 95 percent of budgeted expenses
excluding capital projects.

Principal’s Report — Mrs. Wallace gave an update on projected student enrollment for the 2017-2018
school year. Mrs. Wallace noted that student enrollment continues to rise and the District is nearing the
District's class size tipping points in kindergarten, first grade and fourth grade. Mrs. Wallace
recommended the Board hire an additional teacher to account for an additional Kindergarten class. A
second recommendation to hire a teacher may be made in July depending on enrollment numbers.

Mrs. Wallace discussed the discipline policies for students. A committee will look into the dress code and
PBIS in the fall. Mrs. Wallace said the District has aligned discipline policies with the most recent state
and federal updates.

Mrs. Wallace updated the Board on faculty professional development and the District's curriculum
renewal cycle. Special courses (music, art, practical arts, industrial arts and physical education) will begin
the curriculum renewal cycle this year.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/19/17 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 7



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Director of Student Services’ Report — Mr. Sabourin gave a summary of professional development
training to parents and faculty provided by NSSED during the 2016-2017 school year. Mr. Sabourin also
noted that the District had a successful beginning to the summer extended school year program.

CONSENT AGENDA

Mrs. Kelly asked if there were any questions regarding the consent agenda. There being no questions,
Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to approve the consent agenda.

Mr. Scott Wallace moved to approve the consent agenda which includes approval of: minutes from the
May 15, 2017 regular meeting and closed session,; monthly financial report for May 2017, investment
reports for May 2017, approval of accounts payable for May 16, 2017 to June 19, 2017, acceptance of
request for resignation for Mrs. Mary Beth Tsarpalas, instructional assistant; acceptance of request for
resignation for Ms. Caitlin Phillips, psychologist; acceptance of request for resignation for Ms. Catherine
Small, student services teacher; authorization to destroy closed session recordings for December 2015;
approval of resolution to adopt the 2017 prevailing wage rates; authorization for bill reviewer to approve
payment of accounts payable for June, July and August.

The motion was seconded by Mrs. Suzanne Nelson.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

OLD BUSINESS

Discussion of and Potential Approval to Add 1.0 FTE General Education Teacher — Mrs. Wallace
said that the District is close to adding an additional section in elementary. An additional request for an
FTE may be made in July depending on projected enrollment.

Mr. Gottschall moved to approve the addition of a 1.0 FTE General Education Teacher position. The
motion was seconded by Mr. Ross.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/19/17 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 7



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

Acceptance of JSSPVA Annual Donation for the 2017-2018 School Year — Mrs. Kelly thanked the
teachers and JSSPVA for assembling and presenting the requests to the Board.

Mr. Wallace moved to accept the JSSPVA annual donations for the 2017-2018 school year. The motion
was seconded by Mr. Gottschall.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

Potential Approval to Revise Board Regular and Committee of the Whole Meeting Schedules — Dr.
LeRoy noted that the Committee of the Whole Meeting Scheduled for Oct. 19 would be moved to Oct. 18
due to a conflict with parent teacher conferences.

Mr. Wallace moved to approve the revised board committee of the whole schedule. The motion was
seconded by Mrs. Nelson.

The motion carried with all yeses.

Discussion of Annual Parent Survey and Analysis — Mrs. Nelson gave a presentation on the annual
parent survey. Parent survey response rates have increased significantly due to a pizza party incentive
offered to students. The survey data showed a substantial positive shift in parent attitudes across all
measurable survey categories. The parent survey will be released to the community shortly after the June
board meeting.

Discussion of District’s Bond Authority - Dr. LeRoy led the Board in a discussion on the District's
bond authority. Board members discussed the possibility of issuing debt in anticipation of capital
improvement projects to take advantage of lower interest rates. The issued debt would account for the
savings gained from refinancing District bonds in May, resulting in a net-neutral tax bill for residents.
The Board will continue to explore this option as the District progresses in its master facility plan.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/19/17 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 7



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Board Committee Reports - Mr. Wallace updated the Board on the status of the Kenilworth Village
House project. Mr. Wallace said the Board's building and finance sub-committee met with the Kenilworth
planning commission and came up with a tentative plan to alleviate access issues through work on
Cumnor Road. The sub-committee then met with Park District representatives and the District's
architectural firm before Monday's meeting to discuss potential ideas for uses of the Village House.
Architects will begin to conceptualize the building once a determination has been made on building usage
and staffing.

NEW BUSINESS

Approval to Pay Out Vacation Days for the 2016-2017 School Year for Dr. LeRoy, Mrs. Wallace
and Mr. Sabourin — Mrs. Kelly said the administrators have accumulated vacation days that they would
be unable to use before the end of the year.

Mr. Wallace moved to approve the payout for vacation days for Dr. LeRoy, Mrs. Wallace and Mr.
Sabourin. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Nelson.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

Discussion of and Potential Approval of 2017-2018 Salary Recommendations for 12-Month, Non-
Classified and Annuitant Personnel — Dr. LeRoy said the District’s support staff will receive salary
increases based on merit. Dr. LeRoy noted that salaries are in line with the District’s neighbors in the
county. It was noted that is increase applies to non-teacher faculty and staff.

Mr. Wallace moved to approve the 2017-2018 salary recommendations for 12-month, non-classified and
annuitant personnel. The motion was seconded by Mr. Gottschall.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/19/17 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 7



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mrs. Melissa Ross
The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

Discussion of and Approval of Recommendation to Hire Ms. Cailey Richer as 1.0 FTE Junior High
Student Services Teacher

Mr. Wallace moved to approve the recommendation to hire Ms. Cailey Richer as 1.0 FTE Junior High
Student Services Teacher. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Nelson.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.
Discussion of and Potential Approval to Hire Ms. Gabrielle Baehl as 1.0 FTE Social Worker

Mprs. Ross moved to approve the recommendation to hire Ms. Gabrielle Baehl as 1.0 FTE Social Worker.
The motion was seconded by Mr. Gottschall.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendation to Hire Mrs. Katie Nahrwold as 1.0 FTE
Practical Arts/Outdoor Classroom Coordinator. — Mrs. Wallace noted that Mrs. Nahrwold is a Sears
alumni and member of the community. She noted that the hiring committee felt strongly about Mrs.
Nahrwold’s credentials and vision for the practical arts and outdoor garden program.

Dr. LeRoy noted that community members with children enrolled in the District are not permitted to work
as substitutes, however teachers are held to a higher standard of confidentiality and are thus able to work

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/19/17 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 7



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

as teachers in the District regardless of whether they have children attending Sears.

Mr. Gottschall moved to approve the recommendation to hire Mrs. Katie Nahrwold as 1.0 FTE Practical
Arts/Outdoor Classroom Coordinator. The motion was seconded by Mr. Wallace.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

OTHER BUSINESS

There was none.

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was none.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Mrs. Kelly entertained a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Scott Wallace moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:14 p.m. The motion was seconded by Mr John
Gottschall.

The motion carried with all yeses.
The meeting adjourned at 10:14 p.m.

Attest for Distribution:

Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Mindy Kelly, President

ATTEST:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/19/17 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 7



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Principal

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO

From: Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal
Date: July 6, 2017

Re: Additional FTE for First Grade

Background
Annually our enrollment is reviewed to confirm the number of class sections offered at each

grade level. Per board guidelines, there are recommended caps at respective grade levels. In
recent years, The Joseph Sears School has experienced varied cohort sizes that continue to
evolve during their time at JSS and given recent real estate trends, we are beginning to see a shift
in our enrollment for the SY 2017-18.

Current Enrollment for First Grade

As of July 2, 2017, our first grade enrollment stands at 40. The Joseph Sears School and the
Kenilworth Community pride themselves on the smaller class sizes in the early grades.
According to numerous research studies, small class sizes make the biggest difference for early
elementary students. The impact of these smaller class sizes is realized as the students continue
through the school system, even if class sizes get larger in middle in high school. This small
class size can typically be defined as less than 20 students. Research also indicates that having a
high quality teacher in the classroom also has an impact on the effectiveness of the smaller class
sizes.

In addition, it provides an opportunity for the schoolhouse to provide early intervention and
enrichment opportunities throughout the day as students have the chance to have more contact
minutes with the primary core teacher.

Recommendation

Because of the addition of new students to the grade and our desire to maintain small class sizes
at the lowest grades, my recommendation is to open an additional section of first grade. This
would require adding an additional FTE. This would allow us to reduce the class size and give us
ample time to find a high quality educator to place in the vacancy.

Past practice has been to wait until we acquire the 41st student before opening a third section.
However, each year we have enrolled at least one new first grader in July/August. Given this
trend and the data around class size and the importance of ensuring we have a high quality
candidate, my recommendation is to open a 3rd section at this time.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Principal

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 ¢ kenilworth38.org

Future Considerations

As we move forward, The Board may want to consider reducing the cap for K-2 to 18 or 19
students.
Some sources of research

http://www.centerforpubliceducation.org/Main-Menu/Organizing-a-school/Class-size-and-
student-achievement-At-a-glance/Class-size-and-student-achievement-Research-review.html

https://www.greatschools.org/gk/articles/class-size/

http://www.ncte.org/positions/statements/why-class-size-matters

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



ROLES OF THE BOARD

ROLES

RESPONSIBILITIES Policy Formulation Decision making Oversight
Formulate policies regarding Approve mission and any Appraise performance and
development, review of changes in strategic goals. appropriateness of any
.. mission, strategic goals, Approve and authorize the management actions
Mission . . .

annual operating plan and | annual operating plan and the| taken. Ensure compliance

budgets. supporting operating and with board policies.

capital budgets.
Define Superintendent’s Select Appraise Superintendent’s
. accountabilities and how Superintendent. Determine performance.
Leadership

performance will be
appraised.

compensation and annual
increases.

Conduct of Operations

Formulate policies regarding
personnel, facilities,
maintenance, safety, financial
controls, and other legal
requirements.

Approve all policies
formulated by management
that involve legal, regulatory,
or external, issues.

Appraise and audit operations
to ensure compliance with
board operating policies.

Financial Health

Formulate policies regarding
financial reporting and
controls, control and financial
auditing.

Select independent auditor,
review, and approve audit
report. Approve financial
investments and financing

choices.

Monitor and appraise
revenues, expenditures, and
cash position. Ensure
compliance with board
financial policies.

Board Organization
and Development

Formulate policies regarding
board member expectations,
board member
orientation, board committee
assignments, board planning
and performance evaluation.

Elect board officers. Approve
board committee
appointments.

Appraise board performance.




ROLES OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

ROLES

RESPONSIBILITIES

Planner/ Strategist

Administrator/
Supervisor

Communicator

Achieving the Mission

Define organizational
goals, formulate tactics
and strategies to
support goals.

Plan and assign
work. Delegate
accountability for
accomplishment.

Communicate results
to board, community,
and workforce.

Determine skills and
competencies needed

Hire, train, and coach
leadership

Provide performance
feedback to

Organizational for mission team. Develop the leadership team.
Development accomplishment. Deve| competencies needed
lop organizational to accomplish the
structure. mission.
Establish the Measure and evaluate Communicate and
performance performance. Analyze | explain performance

Setting Performance
Standards

standards needed to
ensure mission
accomplishment.

variances and take
corrective action when
needed.

standards to
employees.

Develop work
processes and controls
that will provide

Authorize work and
supervise
operations. Monitor

Communicate financial
performance to board
and other appropriate

Effective and Efficient| efficient operations and evaluate financial parties.
Use of Resources and prevent expenditures. Analyze
unauthorized use of variances and take
resources. corrective action when
necessary.
Assist board to organize | Provide staff assistance [Provide the board with

Administrative
Support for the Board

and plan its work.

to the board.

the information it
requests to carry out
its oversight role.




	KSD38 Special Board Meeting Agenda 070617
	Minutes 6-19-17 (Open Session)
	Recommendation to Add First Grade Teacher Memo 070617
	Roles of the Board
	Roles of the Superintendent

